
      
 THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given by the Board of Trustees that Granger-Hunter Improvement District will hold a 
Board Meeting at its main office located at 2888 South 3600 West, West Valley City, Utah. at 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 
December 15, 2020, with a Public Hearing beginning at 6:00 P.M.  Trustees and members of the public are able to 

attend this meeting electronically. 
 

Agenda   
A. GENERAL  

1. Call to order – Welcome – Report those present for the record 

2. Public Comments 

3. Consider approval of the November 17, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

4. Discuss potential conflicts of interest    

                                

B. MANAGEMENT TEAM REPORTS 

1. Consider adoption of Resolution 12-15-20.2 AUTHORIZING MODIFICATION OF THE FIRST  

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE to remove the requirement to fund a debt service fund and related 

matters 

2. Consider adoption of Resolution 12-15-20.3 AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE of not more 

than $4,250,000 aggregate principal amount of water and sewer revenue refunding bonds, series 2021 

and related matters 

3. Consider adoption of the 2024 Strategic Plan 

4. Consider adoption of the Employee Policy Handbook 

5. Consider approval of the 2021 Board Meeting Schedule 

6. Administrative update 

 

C. FINANCIAL REPORT   

1. Consider adoption of Resolution 12-15-20.1 REPLACING THE CERTIFICATION OF AUTHORIZED 

INDIVIDUALS FOR ZIONS BANK – BOND ESCROW ACCOUNTS 

2. Review & discuss Financial Report for November 2020 

3. Review & discuss Paid Invoice Report for November 2020 

 

D. CAPITAL PROJECTS & ENGINEERING REPORTS 

1. Capital Projects update 

2. Engineering Department updates 

3. Water Supply Update 

4. Consider approval of a contract with Tonka Water/Kurita for the supply of the Rushton Groundwater 

Treatment Plant Horizontal Pressure Filter Equipment in the amount of $1,132,806.00 contingent on 

final approval of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District tentative 2021 budget 

5. Consider approval of a contract to begin January 1, 2021 with Bowen, Collins & Associates for the 2021 

Master Plan, Capital Improvement and Infrastructure Management Plan, Rate Study and Impact Fee 

Analysis in the amount of $284,388.00 contingent on final approval of the Granger-Hunter Improvement 

District tentative 2021 budget 

 

E. MAINTENANCE REPORTS 

1. Wastewater maintenance update 

2. Water maintenance update 

 

F. BOARD MEMBERS INPUT, REPORTS, FOLLOW-UP ITEMS OR QUESTIONS  

 

     G.  CALENDAR 
1. Next Board Meeting - Tuesday, January 19, 2021 at 3:00 P.M.  

 

 

     H.   6:00 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING – Financial Plan & Budget for the year ending December 31, 2021 

     

1. Consider approval of Resolution No. 12-15-20.4 adopting the District’s financial plan, budget  

and other fees for the calendar year ending December 31, 2021 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

1 

                                                MINUTES OF THE 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BOARD MEETING  

 
The Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District was held 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020, at 3:00 P.M. at the District office located at 2888 S. 3600 W., West Valley 

City, Utah. 

 

This meeting was conducted electronically in accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act 

(Utah Code Ann. (1953) §§ 52-4-1 et seq.) and Chapter 7.12 of the Administrative Policy and Procedures 

Manual (“Electronic Meetings”). 
 

Trustees Present (electronically): 

Debra Armstrong             Chair   

Corey Rushton              Trustee 

Russell Sanderson              Trustee – joined via telephone at 3:35 p.m. 
 

Staff Members Present (electronically): 

Jason Helm             General Manager 

Todd Marti             Assistant General Manager/District Engineer 

Troy Stout             Assistant General Manager/Chief Operating Officer 

Kristy Johnson            Executive Assistant 

Michelle Ketchum                       Director of Administration 

Dustin Martindale            Director of Water Systems 

Ricky Necaise             Director of Wastewater  

Victor Narteh              Director of Engineering 

Justin Gallegos            Director of Information Technology 

Austin Ballard             Controller 

Dakota Cambruzzi            Human Resource Manager 

Brent Rose             Legal Counsel – Clyde Snow & Sessions PC – Excused 

 

Guests (electronically): 
Adam Spackman System Administrator, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Ian Bailey GIS Specialist/IT Specialist, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Drew Ovard Division Manager of Information Technology, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Taylor Gomm Customer Service Representative, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Idanely Orosco Customer Service Representative, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Debra Harvey Customer Service Representative, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Darcy Brantly Accountant, Granger-Hunter Improvement District 

Roger Nordgren Former GHID Board Member/West Valley City Resident 

 
 

A copy of the exhibits referred to in these minutes is attached and incorporated by this reference. The 

exhibits are also included in the official minute books maintained by Granger-Hunter Improvement 

District.   
   

CALL TO ORDER  
             

At 3:04 P.M. Debra Armstrong called the meeting to order and recognized all 

those present.   

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

2 

Approval of the 

October 13, 2020 Board 

Meeting Minutes 

 

      

 

 

Conflicts of interest 

 

MANAGEMENT 

TEAM REPORTS 

JVWCD Update 

 

 

 

 

CVWRF Update 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Supply Update 

 

 

 

 

District Update – 

Staffing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AWWA IMS Operator 

of the Year Award 

 

 

CAPITAL PROJECTS 

& ENGINEERING 

REPORTS 

Capital Projects Update 

Engineering Department 

Updates 

 

 

 A motion to approve the Board Meeting Minutes from October 13, 2020, was 

made by Corey Rushton, followed by a second from Debra Armstrong.  

 

The motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                Sanderson – had not joined 

 

There were none. 

 

Corey Rushton and Jason Helm briefly discussed the Jordan Valley Water 

Conservancy District (JVWCD) consumption reports. Mr. Helm explained that 

water sales are up for most entities within the JVWCD including Granger Hunter 

Improvement District with most exceeding their JVWCD contract.  Mr. Rushton 

discussed the possibility of restructuring the District’s contract.  – See JVWCD 

Update attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Helm gave an update on a Central Valley Water Reclamation Facility 

(CVWRF) meter that has been showing high flow volume for the District since 

it was installed in January.  After further investigation, it was discovered that the 

meter was not functioning properly.  Mr. Helm presented a memo from Phillip 

Heck, the General Manager at CVWRF. -See CVWRF Update attached to these 

minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Helm presented the Water Supply report as of October 31, 2020.  Mr. Helm 

included Jordan Valley Water Conservancy District’s water supply report as a 

comparison with the District. – See Water Supply report attached to these 

minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Helm reported the staffing updates.  The District hired six new employees: 

Taylor Gomm – Customer Service Representative, Gunner Thomas – 

Wastewater Maintenance, Ryan Draney – Water Maintenance, Kevin Killpack – 

Meter Technician, Troy Stout – Assistant General Manager/Chief Operating 

Officer and Dakota Cambruzzi – Human Resource Manager.  Some internal staff 

hires have taken place as well including: Todd Marti – Assistant General 

Manager/District Engineer and Victor Narteh – Director of Engineering.  

 

The American Water Works Association Intermountain Section (AWWA IMS) 

recognized Drew Ovard with the Utah Outstanding Operator of the Year Award 

for 2020.  The Board commends Mr. Ovard on this award. 

 

Todd Marti presented and briefly discussed the Capital Projects and Engineering 

Department reports.  The 18B: 4100 South Waterline Replacement project is 

nearing completion.  Trees are being planted in some of the park strips along 

4100 South.  Corey Rushton inquired regarding the maintenance and water 

supply to the trees.  Mr. Marti explained that West Valley City has installed two 

meters to supply water to the trees.  The 18K: Printer’s Row Waterline 

Replacement project is also nearly complete.  



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INFORMATIONAL 

PRESENTATION 

Review, Discuss & 

Consider Approval of 

the 2021 Tentative 

Budget 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consider the Date for 

the Public Hearing on 

the 2021 Tentative 

Budget 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Marti discussed the Master Plan Update, Rate Study & Impact Fee Analysis 

project.  This project will include a 10-20 year capital improvements and 

maintenance plan plus the rate study and impact fee analysis.  Mr. Marti 

explained that this project has been proposed in the 2021 budget and will be 

discussed further in the December Board Meeting. – See Engineering Summary 

attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Jason Helm explained the process that has taken place this year for creating the 

tentative budget.  Mr. Helm noted that the process began later than normal, due 

to circumstances regarding shifts in management and personnel.  Some key 

points were reviewed and discussed prior to the Board considering approval of 

the 2021 tentative budget.   Russell Sanderson mentioned the District’s cash flow 

for each month in order to have the funds to meet the monthly needs. Austin 

Ballard explained that the District typically keeps an operating reserve of 3-6 

months. Corey Rushton discussed the District’s fleet lease agreement and the 

decision to purchase the vehicles in order to eliminate the lease agreements. Mr. 

Sanderson explained some of the advantages due to the public utilities discount 

and resell value of the vehicles.  Mr. Helm and Mr. Ballard discussed the cost 

analysis and noting the District would have saved about $80,000 over the life of 

the leases, had the District purchased rather than leased those vehicles.  Mr. 

Rushton explained that his concern is with purchasing vehicles that have been 

leased rather than purchasing brand new fleet vehicles.  Mr. Ballard explained 

that the vehicles that will be purchased have low mileage and are in really good 

condition. – See Tentative 2021 Budget Process Report attached to these minutes 

for details. 

 

Mr. Helm noted that the consideration for approval of the 2021 Tentative Budget 

is with some modifications made due to the health insurance premiums being 

lower than budgeted, the CVWF flow meter adjustment, and the bond 

adjustments. 

 

Corey Rushton made a motion to approve the 2021 Tentative Budget.  Following 

a second from Debra Armstrong, the motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Sanderson – aye 

 

Jason Helm asked the Board to consider the date for the public hearing on the 

2021 Tentative Budget for December 15th, 2020 at 6:00 p.m., following the 

regular scheduled December Board Meeting.  Corey Rushton made a motion to 

approve the date as noted.  Following a second from Debra Armstrong, the 

motion passed as follows; 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Sanderson – aye 

 

 

 

 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

4 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

Consider Approval of 

Resolution 11-17-20.1  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Consider Approval of 

Resolution 11-17-20.2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review & Discuss 

Financial Report for 

October 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

Review & Discuss Paid 

Invoice Report for  

October 2020  

 

 

MAINTENANCE 

REPORT 

Water Maintenance 

Update 

 

Wastewater 

Maintenance Update 

 

 

 

Austin Ballard asked the Board to consider approval of Resolution 11-17-20.1 

amending the trustees of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District 401K Profit 

Sharing Plan.  Mr. Ballard explained that with Resolution 11-17-20.1, H. Louis 

Fuell, and Kim J. Coleman would be removed as Trustees of the District 401K 

Profit Sharing Plan.  M. Troy Stout and Austin Ballard would be added as 

Trustees, and Jason Helm would remain a Trustee.  A brief discussion took place 

about the offerings from Utah Retirement Systems and Wells Fargo for 

investments for the District employees.   Russell Sanderson made a motion to 

approve Resolution 11-17-20.1 as noted. Following a second from Debra 

Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Sanderson – aye 

 

Mr. Ballard asked the Board to consider approval of Resolution 11-17-20-2 

replacing the public entity resolution for certification of Authorized Individuals 

for The Office of the State Treasurer Public Investors Treasury Fund (PTIF) 

account.  Mr. Ballard explained that Resolution 11-17-20.2 appoints Jason Helm 

and M. Troy Stout as Authorized Individuals for the District’s PTIF account with 

The Office of the State Treasurer and removes Clinton Jensen and H. Louis Fuell 

as Authorized Individuals.  Debra Armstrong will remain an Authorized 

Individual.  Russell Sanderson made a motion to approve Resolution 11-17-20.2 

as noted. Following a second from Corey Rushton, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Sanderson – aye 

  

Mr. Ballard summarized the October 2020 Financial Report.  Mr. Ballard 

explained the projected water sales will exceed the contract for water purchases 

from Jordan Valley Conservancy District which will cause the District to go over 

budget on that line item.   Property taxes are beginning to come in and majority 

of them should be collected and recorded by the end of December.  Several 

vehicles have been sold for surplus. All other expenses are on track for this time 

of year. 

 

Mr. Ballard discussed the October check report which totaled $4,306,990.72 

coming from seven categories; infrastructure (37%), Jordan Valley (31%), 

Central Valley (16%), payroll taxes and employee benefits (6%), utilities (3%), 

and other (7%).   

 

Troy Stout presented the water systems report. Mr. Stout discussed the water 

maintenance update and noted that the District’s total ruptures for 2020 are 

trending about 9% higher than the past 4-year average. – See Water Systems 

Board Report attached to these minutes for details. 

 

Mr. Stout presented the wastewater systems report.  Mr. Stout noted a type 2 

Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) that occurred at the end of October.  The SSO 

appeared to be caused by vandalism.  Corey Rushton suggested filing a police 

report for future vandalism incidents. – See Wastewater Systems Report 

attached to these minutes for details.  



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

5 

Administrative Update 

 

 

 

Consider Adoption of 

Resolution 11-17-20.3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJOURNED 

 

Michelle Ketchum presented the administrative report regarding the office 

restructure. Ms. Ketchum briefly discussed the delinquent accounts and 

collections process. – See Administrative Report attached to these minutes for 

details.   

 

Michelle Ketchum asked the Board to consider adopting Resolution 11-17-20.3 

to update the 2020 Water Conservation Plan.  Corey Rushton made a motion to 

approve Resolution 11-17-20.3 as noted. Following a second from Debra 

Armstrong, the motion passed as follows: 

 

Armstrong – aye                     Rushton – aye                         Sanderson – aye 

 

Inasmuch as all agenda items have been satisfied, Debra Armstrong made a 

motion to adjourn the meeting.  Following a second from Corey Rushton, the 

motion passed as follows and the meeting adjourned at 5:12 P.M.  

 

Armstrong – aye                      Rushton – aye                      Sanderson – aye 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 

Austin Ballard, Clerk 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

 



Granger-Hunter Improvement District Board of Trustees Meeting (Unapproved and Subject to Change) 

 

 

6 

 

   



 
 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 

 

Jason Helm, P.E., General Manager, CEO 

Todd Marti, P.E., Asst. General Manager/District Engineer 

M. Troy Stout, P.E., Asst. General Manager/COO 

 

 

 
 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

Corey L. Rushton, Trustee 

Russell R. Sanderson, Trustee 

 
 

 

 

Resolution of the Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 12-15-20.2 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZING MODIFICATION OF THE FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL 
INDENTURE TO REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT TO FUND A DEBT 

SERVICE FUND AND RELATED MATTERS 



 

 

West Valley, Utah 

 

December 15, 2020 

 

The Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District, 

Utah, met in regular public session at its regular meeting place in West Valley, Utah, on 

Tuesday, December 15, 2020, at the hour of 5:00 p.m., with the following members of the 

Board being present: 

Debra Armstrong Chairman/Trustee 

Corey Rushton Trustee 

Russell Sanderson Trustee 

 

Also present: 

Jason Helm General Manager 

Austin Ballard Controller/Clerk 

 

Absent:  

  

 

 

 

After the meeting had been duly called to order and after other matters not pertinent 

to this resolution had been discussed, the Controller/Clerk presented to the Board a 

Certificate of Compliance with Open Meeting Law with respect to this December 15, 2020, 

meeting, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

The following resolution was then introduced in written form, was fully discussed, 

and pursuant to motion duly made by Trustee __________ and seconded by Trustee 

__________, was adopted by the following vote: 

AYE:   

 

 

NAY:   

 

   

The resolution is as follows: 

  



 

 2 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

RESOLUTION  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (THE “ISSUER”), 

AUTHORIZING MODIFICATION OF THE FIRST SUPPLEMENTAL 

INDENTURE TO REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT TO FUND A DEBT 

SERVICE FUND AND RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Local Government Bonding Act, 

Title 11, Chapter 14, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the “Act”), a General 

Indenture of Trust dated as of February 1, 2005, as previously amended and supplemented 

and as further supplemented by a Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of July 

1, 2019 (together, the “Indenture”), both by and between the Issuer and Zions 

Bancorporation, National Association the Board of Trustees (the “Board”), the Issuer 

issued its Taxable Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 in the aggregate principal 

amount of $20,000,000 (the “Series 2019 Bonds”) for the purpose of  finance the 

construction of water system improvements and related improvements (the “2019 

Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer considers it desirable and beneficial to modify the Debt 

Service Reserve Fund to remove the Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to the 

Series 2019 Bonds (“Reserve Fund Modification”); and 

WHEREAS, the State of Utah Division of Drinking Water, Drinking Water Board 

(the “Drinking Water Board”) as purchaser of the Series 2019 Bonds has agreed to release 

the requirement of the Issuer to fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund under certain 

circumstances; and 

WHEREAS, in order to accomplish the preceding recital, the Issuer desires to 

amend the Fourth Supplemental Indenture (the “Amendment”) in substantially the form 

attached hereto as Exhibit B; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by the Board of Trustees of Granger-

Hunter Improvement District, as follows: 

Section 1. Terms defined in the foregoing recitals hereto shall have the same 

meaning when used in this Resolution 

Section 2. All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions of 

this resolution by the Issuer and officers of the Issuer direct toward the Reserve Fund 

Modification, are hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.  

Section 3. The Issuer hereby find and determines that it is in the best interests of 

the Issuer and the residents of the Issuer for the Issuer to proceed with the Reserve Fund 

Modification and the Issuer hereby authorizes the Reserve Fund Modification and directs 

it officers and staff of the Issuer to take all actions necessary in connection therewith.  

Section 4.  The Amendment, in substantially the form presented to this meeting and 

attached hereto as an exhibit, is in all respects approved, authorized and confirmed and the 



 

 3 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

Chair of the Issuer is hereby authorized to approve the final terms thereof and to execute 

and deliver the Master Lease Amendment in the form and with substantially the same 

content as attached hereto for and on behalf of the Issuer.   

Section 5.  The appropriate officers of the Issuer are authorized to take all action 

necessary and reasonably required to carry out, give effect to and consummate the 

transactions contemplated hereby and are authorized to take all action necessary in 

conformity with the Act to effect the Reserve Fund Modification, including, without 

limitation, the execution and delivery of any other documents required to be delivered in 

connection therewith.    

Section 6.  All resolutions or part thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of 

such conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in fully force and effect 

immediately upon its approval and adoption. 



 

 4 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this December 15, 2020. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:_________________________________ 

Chair 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  

 Controller/Clerk 



 

 5 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

(Other business not pertinent to the foregoing appears in the minutes of the 

meeting.) 

Upon the conclusion of all business on the Agenda, the meeting was adjourned. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:_________________________________ 

Chair 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

By:  

 Controller/Clerk 

 

 



 

 6 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

STATE OF UTAH ) 

 : ss. 

COUNTY OF SALT LAKE ) 

I, Austin Ballard, the duly appointed and qualified Controller/Clerk of Granger-

Hunter Improvement District (the “District”), do hereby certify according to the records of 

the Board of Trustees of the District (the “Board of Trustees”) in my official possession 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct excerpt of the minutes of the meeting of 

the Board of Trustees held on December 15, 2020, including a resolution (the “Resolution”) 

adopted at said meeting as said minutes and Resolution are officially of record in my 

possession. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my signature and impressed 

hereon the official seal of said District, this December 15, 2020. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:  

Controller/Clerk 

 



 

 B-1 

EXHIBIT A 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

OPEN MEETING LAW 

I, Austin Ballard, the undersigned Controller/Clerk of Granger-Hunter 

Improvement District (the “District”), do hereby certify, according to the records of the 

District in my official possession, and upon my own knowledge and belief, that in 

accordance with the requirements of Section 52-4-202, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as 

amended, I gave not less than twenty-four (24) hours public notice of the agenda, date, 

time and place of the December 15, 2020, public meeting held by the Board of Trustees of 

the District (the “Board of Trustees”) as follows: 

(a) By causing a Notice, in the form attached hereto as Schedule 1, to 

be posted at the District on December ____ 2020, at least twenty-four (24) hours 

prior to the convening of the meeting, said Notice having continuously remained 

so posted and available for public inspection until the completion of the meeting; 

(b) By causing a copy of such Notice, in the form attached hereto as 

Schedule 1, to be delivered to the Salt Lake Tribune and the Deseret News on 

December  ___, 2020, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the convening of the 

meeting; and 

(c) By causing a copy of such Notice, in the form attached hereto as 

Schedule 1, to be posted on the Utah Public Notice Website (http://pmn.utah.gov) 

at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the convening of the meeting. 

In addition, the Notice of 2020 Annual Meeting Schedule for the Board of Trustees 

(attached hereto as Schedule 2) was given specifying the date, time, and place of the regular 

meetings of the Board of Trustees to be held during the year, by causing said Notice to be 

(a) posted on _______________, at the District, (b) provided to at least one newspaper of 

general circulation within the District on _______________, and (c) published on the Utah 

Public Notice Website (http://pmn.utah.gov) during the current calendar year. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my official signature this 

December 15, 2020. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:  

Controller/Clerk 

  

http://pmn.utah.gov/
http://pmn.utah.gov/


 

 2 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

SCHEDULE 1 

NOTICE OF MEETING 



 

 3 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

SCHEDULE 2 

ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE 

  

  



 

 4 
4846-8950-5491, v. 1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

FORM OF AMENDMENT TO INDENTURE 

(See Transcript Document No. ___) 



 

   

 

 

AMENDED FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

 

 

Dated as of December 1, 2020 

 

 

by and between 

 

 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, UTAH 

 

 

and 

 

 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

 

 

Supplementing the General Indenture of Trust 

Dated as of February 1, 2005 



 

   

 

 D-1 

AMENDED FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

This Amended Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 

2020, by and between the Granger-Hunter Improvement District, Utah, a political 

subdivision and body politic duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws 

of the State of Utah (the “Issuer”) and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, a 

national bank duly organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, 

authorized by law to accept and execute trusts and having its principal office in Salt Lake 

City, Utah (the “Trustee”); 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has entered into a General Indenture of Trust, dated as of 

February 1, 2005 (the “General Indenture”), with the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer previously entered into Fourth Supplemental Indenture of 

Trust dated as of July 1, 2019 (the “Fourth Supplemental”) with the trustee issue its Taxable 

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 in the aggregate principal amount of 

$20,000,000 (the “Series 2019 Bonds”) to finance improvements and additions to its water 

system as hereinafter set forth; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer considers it desirable and beneficial to modify the Debt 

Service Reserve Fund to remove the Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to the 

Series 2019 Bonds (the “Reserve Fund Modification”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 9.2 of the General Indenture, the Fourth 

Supplemental may be amended with the consent of Registered Owners of 66 2/3% in 

aggregate Principal amount of the Series 2019 Bonds currently Outstanding; and 

WHEREAS, the State of Utah Division of Drinking Water, Drinking Water Board 

(the “Drinking Water Board”) as the Registered Owner of 100% of the Outstanding Series 

2019 Bonds has agreed to release the requirement of the Issuer to fund the Debt Service 

Reserve Fund under the circumstances described herein; and 

WHEREAS, in order to accomplish the preceding recital, the Issuer desires to 

amend this Fourth Supplemental (the “Amendment”).  

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS AMENDED FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL 

INDENTURE OF TRUST WITNESSETH, that to secure the Series 2019 Bonds and all 

Additional Bonds issued and Outstanding under the Indenture, the payment of the principal 

or redemption price thereof and interest thereon, the rights of the Registered Owners of the 

Bonds and of all Reserve Instrument Providers and the performance of all of the covenants 

contained in such Bonds and herein, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants 

herein contained and of the purchase of such Bonds by the Registered Owners thereof from 

time to time and the issuance of the Reserve Instrument by the Reserve Instrument 

Provider, and of the acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created, and intending 

to be legally bound hereby, the Issuer has executed and delivered this Amended Fourth 



   

4829-2076-0788, v. 1 

Supplemental Indenture of Trust, and by these presents does, in confirmation of the General 

Indenture, as amended and supplemented, hereby sell, assign, transfer, set over and pledge 

unto Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as Trustee, its successors and trusts and 

its assigns forever, to the extent provided in the General Indenture, as amended and 

supplemented, all right, title and interest of the Issuer in and to (i) the Net Revenues (as 

defined in the General Indenture), (ii) all moneys in funds and accounts held by the Trustee 

under the General Indenture and hereunder (except the Rebate Fund), and (iii) all other 

rights granted under the General Indenture and hereinafter granted for the further securing 

of such Bonds. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME unto the Trustee and its successors in 

trust hereby created and its and their assigns forever; 

IN TRUST, NEVERTHELESS, FIRST, for the equal and ratable benefit and 

security of all present and future Registered Owners of Bonds without preference, priority, 

or distinction as to lien or otherwise (except as otherwise specifically provided), of any one 

Bond over any other Bond, and SECOND, for the equal and proportionate benefit, security 

and protection of all Reserve Instrument Providers, without privilege, priority or distinction 

as to the lien or otherwise of any Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligation over any of 

the others by reason of time of issuance, delivery or expiration thereof or otherwise for any 

cause whatsoever. 



   

4829-2076-0788, v. 1 

ARTICLE I 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE; DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Supplemental Indenture.  This Amendment is supplemental to and 

is executed in accordance with and pursuant to Articles II and IX of the General Indenture. 

Section 1.2 Definitions.  All terms which are defined in the General Indenture 

and Fourth Supplemental, shall have the meanings, respectively, when used herein 

(including the use thereof in the recitals and the granting clauses thereof) unless expressly 

given a different meaning or unless the context clearly otherwise requires.  All terms used 

herein which are defined in the recitals hereto shall have the meanings therein given to the 

same unless the context requires otherwise [and, in addition, the following terms shall have 

the meanings specified below:] 

Section 1.3 Supplemental Indenture.  This Fourth Supplemental Indenture is 

supplemental to and is executed in accordance with and pursuant to Articles II and IX of 

the General Indenture. 

Section 1.4 Amended Fourth Supplemental Indenture.   Pursuant to Section 9.2 

of the General Indenture, the Drinking Water Board, as the Registered Owner of 100% of 

the Outstanding Series 2019 Bonds (such consent is attached hereto as Exhibit A) has 

agreed to the Fourth Supplemental is amended as follows: 

(a) The following definitions contained in Section 1.1 of the Fourth 

Supplemental are amended to read as follows: 

“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” so long as the Issuer complies with the 

requirements of Section 4.3, means, with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds an amount equal 

to $0.  In the event that the Issuer does not comply with the requirements of Section 4.3, 

“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” shall mean an initial amount of $1,215,250, which 

shall be funded as provided in Section 4.3 herein. 

“Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Account” means the account established within 

the Debt Service Reserve Fund under the General Indenture held in trust by the Trustee 

which will only be funded if the requirements of Section 4.3 hereof are not met. 

(b) Section 4.3 of the Fourth Supplemental is amended to read as 

follows: 

Section 4.3 Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Account.   

(a) So long as the following conditions are met, the Drinking Water 

Board waives the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, and such requirement shall 

be $0: 

(i) The Issuer shall annually provide the Drinking Water Board 

with a certified budget showing that (A) the Issuer has earmarked all 



   

4829-2076-0788, v. 1 

Principal and interest due on the Series 2019 Bonds for such year and (B) 

the Issuer will have sufficient funds to make such Principal and Interest 

Payments; and 

(ii) The Issuer shall annually provide the Drinking Water Board 

with audited financial statements showing that Net Revenues exceed125% 

of the Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement for such year. 

(b) In the event that the Issuer does not meet the requirements of Section 

4.3(a) above, the Issuer shall deposit with the Trustee, in no more than ten annual 

installments, to be paid on April 1 of each year beginning the with the year that it 

fails to meet the requirements of Section 4.3(a), to the Series 2019 Debt Service 

Reserve Account within the Debt Service Reserve Fund an amount equal to 

$121,525, plus such additional amount as may be required to meet any annual 

installment to said Account which has not been previously paid in whole or in part, 

until there shall have been accumulated therein an amount equal to $1,215,250, the 

Debt Service Reserve Requirement with respect to the Series 2019 Bonds.  The 

moneys on deposit in the Series 2019 Debt Service Reserve Account shall be used 

and when used, replenished, in accordance with the provisions of the General 

Indenture.   

Section 1.5 Effective Date.  This Amendment shall become effective 

immediately upon execution. 

ARTICLE II 

 

CONFIRMATION OF GENERAL INDENTURE 

As supplemented by this Amendment, and except as provided herein, the General 

Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed, and the General Indenture, the Fourth 

Supplemental Indenture and this Amendment shall be read, taken and construed as one and 

the same instrument so that all of the rights, remedies, terms, conditions, covenants, and 

agreements of the General Indenture shall apply and remain in full force and effect with 

respect to this Amendment, and to any revenues, receipts and moneys to be derived 

therefrom. 

 

  



   

4829-2076-0788, v. 1 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Trustee have caused this Amended 

Fourth Supplemental Indenture of Trust to be executed as of the date first written above. 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, UTAH 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:  

Chair 

 

 

COUNTERSIGN: 

 

 

 

By:  

Chief Financial Officer/Clerk 

 

 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

 

 

 

By:  

 

Title:  

 



 

   

 

 D-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

CONSENT OF DRINKING WATER BOARD 



 
 

 
 

2888 South 3600 West   •   P.O. Box 701110   •   West Valley City, Utah 84170-1110 •   Phone (801) 968-3551   •   Fax (801) 968-5467 •   www.ghid.org 

 

Jason Helm, P.E., General Manager, CEO 

Todd Marti, P.E., Asst. General Manager/District Engineer 

M. Troy Stout, P.E., Asst. General Manager/COO 

 

 

 
 

Debra K. Armstrong, Chair 

Corey L. Rushton, Trustee 

Russell R. Sanderson, Trustee 

 
 

 

 

Resolution of the Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 12-15-20.3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT MORE THAN 
$4,250,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF WATER AND 

SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021; FIXING THE 
MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE BONDS, THE 

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF YEARS OVER WHICH THE BONDS MAY BEAR, 
AND THE MAXIMUM DISCOUNT FROM PAR AT WHICH THE BONDS 

MAY BE SOLD; PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF 
BONDS TO BE ISSUED; PROVIDING FOR THE RUNNING OF A 

CONTEST PERIOD; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION BY THE ISSUER 
OF A GENERAL INDENTURE AND A SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE, 

AND OTHER DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION THEREWITH; 
AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL OTHER ACTIONS NECESSARY 

TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED 
BY THIS RESOLUTION; AND RELATED MATTERS 



 

 

 West Valley, Utah 

 

December 15, 2020 

 

The Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Granger-Hunter Improvement District, 

Utah, met in regular public session at its regular meeting place in West Valley, Utah, on 

Tuesday, December 15, 2020, at the hour of 5:00 p.m., with the following members of the 

Board being present: 

Debra Armstrong Chairman/Trustee 

Corey Rushton Trustee 

Russell Sanderson Trustee 

 

Also present: 

Jason Helm General Manager 

Austin Ballard Controller/Clerk 

 

Absent:  

  

 

 

 

 

After the meeting had been duly called to order and after other matters not pertinent 

to this resolution had been discussed, the Clerk presented to the Board a Certificate of 

Compliance with Open and Public Meetings Act with respect to this December 15, 2020, 

meeting, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

The following resolution was then introduced in written form, was fully discussed, 

and pursuant to motion duly made by Board member __________ and seconded by Board 

member __________, was adopted by the following vote: 

AYE:   

 

 

 

 

NAY:   

 

The resolution is as follows: 

  



 

 2  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

RESOLUTION  

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, UTAH (THE 

“ISSUER”), AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT 

MORE THAN $4,250,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 

2021; FIXING THE MAXIMUM AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 

OF THE BONDS, THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF YEARS OVER 

WHICH THE BONDS MAY MATURE, THE MAXIMUM INTEREST 

RATE WHICH THE BONDS MAY BEAR, AND THE MAXIMUM 

DISCOUNT FROM PAR AT WHICH THE BONDS MAY BE SOLD; 

PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF BONDS TO 

BE ISSUED; PROVIDING FOR THE RUNNING OF A CONTEST 

PERIOD; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION BY THE ISSUER OF A 

GENERAL INDENTURE AND A SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE,  

AND OTHER DOCUMENTS REQUIRED IN CONNECTION 

THEREWITH; AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF ALL OTHER 

ACTIONS NECESSARY TO THE CONSUMMATION OF THE 

TRANSACTIONS CONTEMPLATED BY THIS RESOLUTION; AND 

RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Granger-Hunter 

Improvement District, Utah (the “Issuer”) desires to (a) refund all or a portion of the 

Issuer’s currently outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds (the “Refunded Bonds”), 

(b) fund a debt service reserve fund, if necessary, and (c) pay costs of issuance with respect 

to the Series 2021 Bonds herein described; and 

WHEREAS, to accomplish the purposes set forth in the preceding recital, and 

subject to the limitations set forth herein, the Issuer desires to issue its Water and Sewer 

Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 (the “Series 2021 Bonds”) (to be issued from time 

to time, as one or more series and with such other series or title designation(s) as may be 

determined by the Issuer), pursuant to (a) the Utah Refunding Bond Act, Title 11, Chapter 

27, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the “Act”), (b) this Resolution, and (c) a 

General Indenture of Trust and a Supplemental Indenture of Trust (collectively, the 

“Indenture”), in substantially the form presented to the meeting at which this Resolution 

was adopted and which is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and 

WHEREAS, the Act provides that an issuing entity may give notice of its intent to 

issue bonds under the Act; and 

WHEREAS, in order to allow the Issuer, flexibility in setting the pricing date of the 

Series 2021 Bonds, the Board desires to grant to any one of the Controller/Clerk and the 

General Manager (collectively, the “Designated Officer”), the authority to select the 

Purchaser, to approve the final interest rates, principal amounts, terms, maturities, 

redemption features, and purchase price at which the Series 2021 Bonds shall be sold, and 

to approve the final Refunded Bonds, and to make any changes with respect thereto from 



 

 3  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

those terms which were before the Board at the time of adoption of this Resolution, 

provided such terms do not exceed the parameters set forth for such terms in this Resolution 

(the “Parameters”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby resolved by the Board of Trustees of the Granger-

Hunter Improvement District, Utah, as follows: 

Section 1. For the purpose of refunding the Refunded Bonds, funding any 

required debt service reserve fund, if necessary and paying costs of issuance of the Series 

2021 Bonds, the Issuer hereby authorizes the issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds which shall 

be designated “Granger-Hunter Improvement District, Utah Water and Sewer Revenue 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2021” (to be issued from time to time as one or more series and 

with such other series or title designation(s) as may be determined by the Issuer) in the 

initial aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $4,250,000.  The Series 2021 Bonds 

shall mature in not more than fifteen (15) years from their date or dates, shall be sold at a 

price not less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of the total principal amount thereof, shall 

bear interest at a rate or rates not to exceed one and a half percent (1.50%) per annum, and 

shall be non-callable or subject to redemption, all as shall be approved by the Designated 

Officer, all within the Parameters set forth herein.   

Section 2. The Indenture, in substantially the form presented at this meeting 

and attached hereto as Exhibits B, are hereby authorized, approved, and confirmed.  The 

Chair and the Clerk (or designee) are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Indenture 

and the Bond Purchase Agreement, in substantially the forms and with substantially the 

content as the forms presented at this meeting for and on behalf of the Issuer, with final 

terms as may be established by the Designated Officers, within the Parameters set forth 

herein, and with such alterations, changes or additions as may be necessary or as may be 

authorized by Section 4 hereof.  The Designated Officers are each hereby authorized to 

select the Purchaser, to specify and agree as to the final principal amounts, terms, discounts, 

maturities, interest rates, redemption features, and purchase price with respect to the Series 

2021 Bonds and the Refunded Bonds for and on behalf of the Issuer by execution of the 

Indenture, provided that such terms are within the Parameters set by this Resolution. 

Section 3. The Designated Officer and other appropriate officials of the Issuer 

are authorized to make any alterations, changes, deletions, or additions to the Indenture, 

the Series 2021 Bonds,  or any other document herein authorized and approved which may 

be necessary to conform the same to the final terms of the Series 2021 Bonds (within the 

Parameters set by this Resolution), to correct errors or omissions therein, to complete the 

same, to remove ambiguities therefrom, or to conform the same to other provisions of said 

instruments, to the provisions of this Resolution or any resolution adopted by the Board or 

the provisions of the laws of the State of Utah or the United States.  The execution thereof 

by the Chair on behalf of the Issuer of the documents approved hereby shall conclusively 

establish such necessity, appropriateness, and approval with respect to all such additions, 

modifications, deletions, and changes incorporated therein. 

Section 4. The form, terms, and provisions of the Series 2021 Bonds and the 

provisions for the signatures, authentication, payment, registration, transfer, exchange, 



 

 4  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

redemption, and number shall be as set forth in the Indenture.  The Chair and Clerk are 

hereby authorized and directed to execute and seal the Series 2021 Bonds and to deliver 

said Series 2021 Bonds to the Trustee for authentication.  The signatures of the Chair and 

the Clerk may be by facsimile or manual execution. 

Section 5. The Designated Officer and other appropriate officials of the Issuer 

are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Trustee the written order 

of the Issuer for authentication and delivery of the Series 2021 Bonds in accordance with 

the provisions of the Indenture. 

Section 6. Upon their issuance, the Series 2021 Bonds will constitute special 

limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely from and to the extent of the sources set 

forth in the Series 2021 Bonds and the Indenture.  No provision of this Resolution, the 

Indenture, the Series 2021 Bonds, or any other instrument, shall be construed as creating a 

general obligation of the Issuer, or of creating a general obligation of the State of Utah or 

any political subdivision thereof, or as incurring or creating a charge upon the general credit 

of the Issuer or its taxing powers. 

Section 7. The Designated Officer and other appropriate officials of the Issuer, 

and each of them, are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver for and on 

behalf of the Issuer any or all additional certificates, documents and other papers 

(including, without limitation, escrow agreements or any reserve instrument guaranty 

agreements permitted by the Indenture) and to perform all other acts they may deem 

necessary or appropriate in order to implement and carry out the matters authorized in this 

Resolution and the documents authorized and approved herein. 

Section 8. In accordance with the provisions of the Act, the Clerk will cause a 

“Notice of Bonds to be Issued” to be (i) published one (1) time in The Salt Lake Tribune, 

and the Deseret News, newspapers of general circulation in the Issuer, (ii) posted on the 

Utah Public Notice Website (http://pmn.utah.gov) and (iii) posted on the Utah Legal 

Notices website (www.utahlegals.com) created under Section 45-1-101, Utah Code 

Annotated 1953, as amended, and shall cause a copy of this Resolution and the Indenture 

to be kept on file in the Clerk’s office, for public examination during the regular business 

hours of the District until at least thirty (30) days after the date of publication thereof.  The 

“Notice of Bonds to be Issued” shall be in substantially the following form: 



 

 5  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

NOTICE OF BONDS TO BE ISSUED 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN pursuant to the provisions of the Utah Refunding 

Bond Act, Title 11, Chapter 27, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended, that on December 

15, 2020, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of Granger-Hunter Improvement District, 

Utah (the “Issuer”), adopted a resolution (the “Resolution”) in which it authorized the 

issuance of the Issuer’s Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2021 (or with 

such other series or title designation as may be determined by the Issuer) (the “Series 2021 

Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of not more than Four Million Two-Hundred 

and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($4,250,000), to mature in not more than fifteen (15) years 

from their date or dates, to be sold at a price not less than ninety-eight percent (98%) of the 

total principal amount thereof, and to bear interest at a maximum rate or rates of not to 

exceed one and a half percent (1.50%) per annum. 

The Series 2021 Bonds will be issued for the purpose of (a) refunding certain 

outstanding water and sewer revenue bonds of the Issuer, (b) funding a debt service reserve 

fund, if necessary, and (c) paying costs of issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds. 

The Series 2021 Bonds are to be issued and sold by the Issuer pursuant to the 

Resolution, including as part of said Resolution, a form of a General Indenture of Trust and 

a Supplemental Indenture of Trust (collectively, the “Indenture”), which were before the 

Board and attached to the Resolution in substantially final form at the time of adoption of 

the Resolution. 

The Series 2021 Bonds are special limited obligations of the Issuer payable from 

the net revenues of the Issuer’s water and sewer system. 

A copy of the Resolution and the Indenture are on file in the office of the Clerk, 

2888 South 3600 West, West Valley City, Utah, where they may be examined during 

regular business hours of the Clerk from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, 

for a period of at least thirty (30) days from and after the date of publication of this notice. 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that a period of thirty (30) days from and after the 

date of the publication of this notice is provided by law during which any person in interest 

shall have the right to contest the legality of the Resolution, the Indenture (only as it relates 

to the Series 2021 Bonds), or the Series 2021 Bonds, or any provision made for the security 

and payment of the Series 2021 Bonds, and that after such time, no one shall have any 

cause of action to contest the regularity, formality, or legality thereof for any cause 

whatsoever. 

DATED this December 15, 2020  

 /s/Austin Ballard  

Clerk 

  



 

 6  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

Section 10. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 

of such conflict, hereby repealed and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon its approval and adoption. 

Section 11. Upon the issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds, this Resolution shall 

be and remain irrepealable until the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 

2021 Bonds are deemed to have been duly discharged in accordance with the terms and 

provisions of the Indenture. 

 

  



 

 7  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this December 15, 2020. 

 

 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, UTAH 

(SEAL) 

 

 

  

Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

 Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

(Here follows business not pertinent to the above.) 

 

Pursuant to motion duly made and seconded, the Board of Trustees adjourned. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

  

Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 Clerk 



 

 9  
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

STATE OF UTAH ) 

 : ss. 

COUNTY OF SALT LAKE ) 

I, Austin Ballard, the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the Granger-Hunter 

Improvement District, Utah (the “District”), do hereby certify according to the records of 

the Board of Trustees of the District (the “Board of Trustees”) in my official possession 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct excerpt of the minutes of the meeting of 

the Board of Trustees held on December 15, 2020, including a resolution (the “Resolution”) 

adopted at said meeting as said minutes and Resolution are officially of record in my 

possession. 

I further certify that the Resolution, with all exhibits attached, was deposited in my 

office on December 15, 2020, and pursuant to the Resolution, there will be published a 

Notice of Bonds to be Issued one time each in The Salt Lake Tribune, and the Deseret 

News,  newspapers having general circulation within the District, (a) on the Utah Public 

Notice Website created under Section 63F-1-701, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended 

and (b) on the Utah Legal Notices website (www.utahlegals.com) created under Section 

45-1-101, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my signature and impressed 

hereon the official seal of said District, this December 15, 2020. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:  

Clerk 

 

 



 

 A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 

OPEN AND PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT 

I, Austin Ballard, the undersigned Clerk of the Granger-Hunter Improvement 

District, Utah (the “District”), do hereby certify, according to the records of the District in 

my official possession, and upon my own knowledge and belief, that in accordance with 

the requirements of Section 52-4-202, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as amended, I gave not 

less than twenty-four (24) hours public notice of the agenda, date, time and place of the 

December 15, 2020, public meeting held by the Board of Trustees of the District (the 

“Board of Trustees”) as follows: 

(a) By causing a Notice, in the form attached hereto as Schedule 1, to 

be posted at the principal offices of the District on December ____, 2020, at least 

twenty-four (24) hours prior to the convening of the meeting, said Notice having 

continuously remained so posted and available for public inspection until the 

completion of the meeting; 

(b) By causing a copy of such Notice, in the form attached hereto as 

Schedule 1, to be posted on the Utah Public Notice Website (http://pmn.utah.gov) 

at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the convening of the meeting; and 

(c) By causing a copy of such Notice, in the form attached hereto as 

Schedule 1, to be delivered to The Salt Lake Tribune and the Deseret News pursuant 

to its subscription to the Utah Public Notice Website (http://pmn.utah.gov), at least 

twenty-four (24) hours prior to the convening of the meeting. 

In addition, the Notice of 2020 Annual Meeting Schedule for the Board of Trustees 

(attached hereto as Schedule 2) was given specifying the date, time, and place of the regular 

meetings of the Board of Trustees to be held during the year, by causing said Notice to be 

(a) posted on _________________, at the principal office of the Board of Trustees, (b) 

published on the Utah Public Notice Website (http://pmn.utah.gov) during the current 

calendar year and (c) provided to at least one newspaper of general circulation within the 

District pursuant to its subscription to the Utah Public Notice Website 

(http://pmn.utah.gov). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my official signature this 

December 15, 2020. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:  

Clerk 

  

http://pmn.utah.gov/
http://pmn.utah.gov/
http://pmn.utah.gov/
http://pmn.utah.gov/


 

 A-2 
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

SCHEDULE 1 

NOTICE OF MEETING 



 

 A-3 
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

SCHEDULE 2 

ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE 

  



 

 A-4 
4815-9942-9844, v. 2 

(attach Proof of Publication of 

Notice Bonds to be Issued) 



 

 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

 

FORM OF INDENTURE 

(See Transcript Document Nos. __ ) 



 

   

 

 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

 

 

Dated as of __________, 2021 

 

 

by and between 

 

 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, UTAH 

 

 

and 

 

 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

 

 

Supplementing the General Indenture of Trust 

Dated as of February 1, 2005 



 

   

 

 

Table of Contents 

Page 

ARTICLE I SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE; DEFINITIONS .......................................3 

Section 1.1 Supplemental Indenture ...............................................................................3 

Section 1.2 Uniform Definitions .....................................................................................3 
Section 1.3 Additional Definitions .................................................................................3 

ARTICLE II ISSUANCE OF THE SERIES 2021 BONDS ................................................4 

Section 2.1 Principal Amount, Designation and Series ..................................................4 

Section 2.2 Date, Payment Dates, and Hardship Grant Assessment ..............................4 
Section 2.3 Delinquent Payment .....................................................................................5 
Section 2.4 Exchange of State Bonds .............................................................................5 

Section 2.5 Designation of Registrar ..............................................................................6 
Section 2.6 Designation of Paying Agent .......................................................................6 

Section 2.7 Limited Obligation .......................................................................................6 
Section 2.8 Enforcement of Indenture with Respect to Series 2021 Bonds ...................6 
Section 2.9 Optional Redemption and Redemption Prices .............................................6 

Section 2.10 Sale of Series 2021 Bonds ...........................................................................7 
Section 2.11 Series 2021 Bonds as Refunding Bonds ......................................................7 

ARTICLE III ADDITIONAL COVENANTS.....................................................................8 

Section 3.1 Additional Covenants with Respect to the Series 2021 Bonds ....................8 

ARTICLE IV APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FUNDS AND 

ACCOUNTS ..........................................................................................................10 

Section 4.1 Establishment of the Series 2021 Cost of Issuance Account. ....................10 

Section 4.2 Transfer of Fund and Application of Proceeds of the Series 2021 

Bonds and Exchange. .................................................................................10 

Section 4.3 Series 2021 Costs of Issuance Account .....................................................10 
Section 4.4 Series 2021 Debt Service Reserve Account...............................................10 
Section 4.5 Capital Facilities Replacement Reserve Account ......................................10 

Section 4.6 Series 2021 Bonds as Additional Bonds. ...................................................10 

ARTICLE V MISCELLANEOUS ....................................................................................11 

Section 5.1 Confirmation of Sale of Series 2021 Bonds ..............................................11 
Section 5.2 Severability ................................................................................................11 
Section 5.3 Counterparts ...............................................................................................11 
Section 5.4 Applicable Law ..........................................................................................11 
Section 5.5 Effective Date ............................................................................................11 

ARTICLE VI CONFIRMATION OF GENERAL INDENTURE ....................................12 



   

 ii 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

EXHIBIT A COST OF ISSUANCE DISBURSEMENT REQUEST  ........................ A-1 

EXHIBIT B-1 FORM OF STATE BONDS–SERIES 2021  .................................... B-1-1 

EXHIBIT B-2 FORM OF EXCHANGE BOND–SERIES 2021 ............................. B-2-1 



 

   

 

 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

This Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of __________, 2021, by and 

between the Granger-Hunter Improvement District, Utah, a political subdivision and body 

politic duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Utah 

(the “Issuer”) and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, a national bank duly 

organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, authorized by law 

to accept and execute trusts and having its principal office in Salt Lake City, Utah (the 

“Trustee”); 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has entered into a General Indenture of Trust, dated as of 

February 1, 2005 (the “General Indenture”), with the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer desires to issue bonds in order to refund or exchange its 

outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (the “Refunded Bonds”); and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2021 Bonds will be authorized, issued and secured under 

the General Indenture, as amended and supplemented by this Fifth Supplemental Indenture 

(the “Fifth Supplemental Indenture,” and collectively with the General Indenture, and any 

amendments thereto or hereto, the “Indenture”); and 

WHEREAS, the State of Utah acting through the Department of Environmental 

Quality, Water Quality Board (the “Water Quality Board”) has agreed to purchase the 

Series 2021 Bonds upon the terms and conditions herein set forth; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of the Series 2021 Bonds and of this Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture have in all respects been duly authorized and all things necessary 

to make the Series 2021 Bonds, when executed by the Issuer and authenticated by the 

Trustee, the valid and binding legal obligations of the Issuer and to make this Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture a valid and binding agreement have been done; 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 

WITNESSETH, that to secure the Series 2021 Bonds and all Additional Bonds issued and 

Outstanding under the Indenture, the payment of the principal or redemption price thereof 

and interest thereon, the rights of the Registered Owners of the Bonds and of all Reserve 

Instrument Providers and the performance of all of the covenants contained in such Bonds 

and herein, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained and of 

the purchase of such Bonds by the Registered Owners thereof from time to time and the 

issuance of the Reserve Instrument by the Reserve Instrument Provider, and of the 

acceptance by the Trustee of the trusts hereby created, and intending to be legally bound 

hereby, the Issuer has executed and delivered this Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, 

and by these presents does, in confirmation of the General Indenture, as amended and 

supplemented, hereby sell, assign, transfer, set over and pledge unto Zions Bancorporation, 

National Association, as Trustee, its successors and trusts and its assigns forever, to the 

extent provided in the General Indenture, as amended and supplemented, all right, title and 



   

 2 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

interest of the Issuer in and to (i) the Net Revenues (as defined in the General Indenture), 

(ii) all moneys in funds and accounts held by the Trustee under the General Indenture and 

hereunder (except the Rebate Fund), and (iii) all other rights granted under the General 

Indenture and hereinafter granted for the further securing of such Bonds. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD THE SAME unto the Trustee and its successors in 

trust hereby created and its and their assigns forever; 

IN TRUST, NEVERTHELESS, FIRST, for the equal and ratable benefit and 

security of all present and future Registered Owners of Bonds without preference, priority, 

or distinction as to lien or otherwise (except as otherwise specifically provided), of any one 

Bond over any other Bond, and SECOND, for the equal and proportionate benefit, security 

and protection of all Reserve Instrument Providers, without privilege, priority or distinction 

as to the lien or otherwise of any Reserve Instrument Repayment Obligation over any of 

the others by reason of time of issuance, delivery or expiration thereof or otherwise for any 

cause whatsoever. 



   

 3 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ARTICLE I 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE; DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.1 Supplemental Indenture.  This Fifth Supplemental Indenture is 

supplemental to and is executed in accordance with and pursuant to Articles II and IX of 

the General Indenture. 

Section 1.2 Uniform Definitions.  All terms which are defined in the General 

Indenture, shall have the meanings, respectively, herein (including the use thereof in the 

recitals and the granting clauses thereof) unless expressly given a different meaning or 

unless the context clearly otherwise requires.  All terms used herein which are defined in 

the recitals hereto shall have the meanings therein given to the same unless the context 

requires otherwise and, in addition, the following terms shall have the meanings specified 

below. 

Section 1.3 Additional Definitions.  In addition, for purposes of the General 

Indenture and this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, the following terms shall, unless the 

context clearly requires otherwise, have the meanings as follows: 

“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Series 2021 Bonds, 

an initial amount of $_____, which shall be funded as provided in Section 4.3 herein. 

[“Hardship Grant Assessment Payment Date” with respect to the Series 2021 

Bonds, means each __________, beginning __________, 2021.] 

“Original Issue Date” means with respect to the Series 2021 Bonds, their initial 

delivery date. 

“Parity Bonds” means currently, the Issuer’s Outstanding Water and Sewer 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2019. 

“Refunded Bonds” means the Issuer’s outstanding Water and Sewer Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2012. 

“Series 2021 Bonds” means the Issuer’s Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2021, herein authorized. 

“Series 2021 Debt Service Reserve Account” means the account established within 

the Debt Service Reserve Fund under the General Indenture held in trust by the Trustee. 

“Water Quality Board” means the State of Utah Department of Environmental 

Quality, Water Quality Board, or any successor thereof. 



   

 4 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ARTICLE II 

ISSUANCE OF THE SERIES 2021 BONDS 

Section 2.1 Principal Amount, Designation and Series.  The Series 2021 Bonds 

are hereby authorized for issuance under the Indenture for the purpose of providing funds 

to (a) refund the Refunded Bonds and (b) pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance 

of the Series 2021 Bonds.  The Series 2021 Bonds shall be limited to $_______ in aggregate 

principal amount, shall be issued (i) if issued as a State Bond, in the form set forth in Exhibit 

B-1 and (ii) if issued as an Exchange Bond, in the form set forth in Exhibit B-2 in fully 

registered form.  The Series 2021 Bonds shall bear a Hardship Grant Assessment from their 

Original Issue Date at the rate of 1.50% per annum on the unpaid principal balance of the 

Series 2021 Bonds which shall be payable commencing __________, 2020 until the Series 

2021 Bonds are paid in full.  If issued as Exchange Bonds, the Series 2021 Bonds shall be 

in the denomination of $1,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  The Series 2021 Bonds 

shall initially be issued as one fully registered State Bond.  The Series 2021 Bonds shall be 

designated as and shall be distinguished from the Bonds of all other series by the title, 

“Granger-Hunter Improvement District, Utah Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2021.”   

The Series 2021 Bonds shall be issued on a parity with the Issuer’s Parity Bonds, 

such that the Series 2021 Bonds are secured by an equal lien pledge of the Net Revenues 

of the Issuer’s System with said Parity Bonds. 

Section 2.2 Date, Payment Dates, and Hardship Grant Assessment.  The Series 

2021 Bonds shall be in the denomination of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) each or any 

integral multiple thereof and shall be paid as provided in this Section 2.2.   

Except as provided in the next succeeding paragraph, principal payments, whether 

at maturity or by redemption, shall be payable upon presentation of the applicable Series 

2021 Bonds at the offices of the Paying Agent for endorsement or surrender, or of any 

successor Paying Agent.   

So long as the Water Quality Board is the Registered Owner of the Series 2021 

Bonds, payments on the Series 2021 Bonds shall be made by check or draft without 

presentation of the Series 2021 Bonds and mailed to the Water Quality Board as the 

Registered Owner at the address shown on the registration books maintained by the 

Registrar.  Payment on the Series 2021 Bonds shall be made in any coin or currency which 

on the date of payment is legal tender for the payment of debts due the United States of 

America. 

The Series 2021 Bonds shall be dated as of the Original Issue Date, and shall be 

payable in installment payments on __________ in the years and in the amounts and shall 

bear a Hardship Grant Assessment at the rate of 1.25% per annum as follows: 

 



   

 5 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

Payment Date 

(__________) 

 

Principal Amount 
Payment Date 

(__________) 

 

Principal Amount 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

The Hardship Grant Assessment on Series 2021 Bonds so payable, and punctually 

paid and duly provided for, on any Hardship Grant Assessment Payment Date will be paid 

to the Registered Owner thereof at the close of business on the Regular Record Date for 

such Hardship Grant Assessment.  Any such Hardship Grant Assessment not so punctually 

paid or duly provided for shall forthwith cease to be payable to the registered owner of any 

Series 2021 Bonds on such Regular Record Date and may be paid to the registered owner 

thereof at the close of business on a Special Record Date for the payment of such defaulted 

Hardship Grant Assessment to be fixed by the Trustee, notice thereof to be given to such 

registered owner not less than ten days prior to such Special Record Date.  The principal 

of and premium, if any, on the Series 2021 Bonds are payable upon presentation and 

surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee.  The Hardship Grant 

Assessment shall be paid by check or draft mailed on each Hardship Grant Assessment 

Payment Date to the Holder of each of the Series 2021 Bonds as the name and address of 

such Holder appears on the Record Date in the Register. The Hardship Grant Assessment 

on the Series 2021 Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 

twelve 30-day months. 

Section 2.3 Delinquent Payment.  Payments of principal and Hardship Grant 

Assessment on the Series 2021 Bonds which are delinquent from the due date thereof shall 

draw interest at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum on the delinquent payment 

from said due date until paid in full. 

Section 2.4 Exchange of State Bonds.  As long as the Water Quality Board is 

the sole Registered Owner of the Series 2021 Bonds, the Series 2021 Bonds shall be issued 

only as the State Bonds in the form prescribed in Exhibit B-1.  It is recognized that the 

Water Quality Board may sell or otherwise transfer the Series 2021 Bonds pursuant to the 

provisions of the State Financing Consolidation Act, Title 63B, Chapter 1b, Utah Code 

Annotated 1953, as amended, or otherwise.  In the event the Water Quality Board 

determines to sell or otherwise transfer all or a portion of the Series 2021 Bonds pursuant 

to the State Financing Consolidation Act, or otherwise, the State Bonds shall be exchanged 

at the office of the Paying Agent for a like aggregate principal amount of Exchange Bonds 

in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2.5.  Any Series 2021 Bond, or any portion 

thereof, which is sold or otherwise transferred or liquidated by the Water Quality Board 



   

 6 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

pursuant to the State Financing Consolidation Act, or otherwise, shall be in the form of an 

Exchange Bond prescribed in Exhibit B-2, and shall be executed pursuant to authorization 

contained in Section 2.6 of the General Indenture.  Each principal payment on the State 

Bonds not previously paid or canceled shall be represented by an equivalent principal 

amount of Exchange Bonds, in authorized denominations, and of like maturity.  The Issuer 

and its officers shall execute and deliver such documents and perform such acts as may 

reasonably be required by the Issuer to accomplish the exchange of the State Bonds for 

Exchange Bonds, provided that the Water Quality Board shall pay or cause to be paid all 

costs and other charges incident to such exchange and the Issuer shall have no obligation 

to pay any such costs or charges. 

Section 2.5 Designation of Registrar.  Zions Bancorporation, National 

Association, Salt Lake City, Utah, is hereby designated as Registrar for the Series 2021 

Bonds, acceptance of which appointment shall be evidenced by execution of this Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture by the Trustee. 

Section 2.6 Designation of Paying Agent.  Zions Bancorporation, National 

Association, Salt Lake City, Utah, is hereby designated as Paying Agent for the Series 2021 

Bonds, acceptance of which appointment shall be evidenced by execution of this Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture by the Trustee. 

Section 2.7 Limited Obligation.  The Series 2021 Bonds, together with Hardship 

Grant Assessment thereon, shall be special limited obligations of the Issuer payable solely 

from the Net Revenues (except to the extent paid out of moneys attributable to the Series 

2021 Bond proceeds or other funds created hereunder or under the Indenture (excluding 

the Rebate Fund) or the income from the temporary investment thereof). 

Section 2.8 Enforcement of Indenture with Respect to Series 2021 Bonds.  

Notwithstanding anything in the General Indenture or herein to the contrary, so long as the 

Water Quality Board is the Registered Owner of the Series 2021 Bonds, it may deal directly 

with the Issuer in the servicing and enforcement of said Series 2021 Bonds; provided, 

however, prior to undertaking any enforcement activity, it will consult with the Trustee and 

coordinate any such enforcement with the Trustee to the extent permissible under State 

regulations, and further provided that no remedial action may be taken by the Water Quality 

Board or the Trustee which favors one Bondholder over another. 

Section 2.9 Optional Redemption and Redemption Prices.  Each principal 

payment of the Series 2021 Bonds is subject to prepayment and redemption at any time, in 

whole or in part (if in part, in integral multiples of $1,000), at the election of the Issuer, in 

inverse order of the due dates thereof, and by lot selected by the Issuer if less than all of 

the State Bonds of a particular due date are to be redeemed, upon notice as provided in 

Section 2.8 of the General Indenture, and upon at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice 

of the amount of prepayment and the date scheduled for prepayment of the Water Quality 

Board with respect to the State Bonds, and at a redemption price equal to 100% of the 

principal amount to be prepaid or redeemed, plus accrued Hardship Grant Assessment, if 

any, to the date of redemption. 



   

 7 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

Section 2.10 Sale of Series 2021 Bonds.  The Series 2021 Bonds are hereby sold 

to the Water Quality Board at a purchase price of $___________. 

Section 2.11 Series 2021 Bonds as Refunding Bonds.  The Series 2021 Bonds are 

issued in order to refund the Refunded Bonds under Section 2.14 of the General Indenture.  

The Issuer hereby certifies that the requirements set forth in Section 2.4(c) of the General 

Indenture have been and will be complied with in connection with the issuance of the Series 

2021 Bonds. 

 



   

 8 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ARTICLE III 

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

Section 3.1 Additional Covenants with Respect to the Series 2021 Bonds.  The 

Issuer hereby covenants and agrees with the holder of the Series 2021 Bonds issued 

hereunder the following: 

(a) So long as the Series 2021 Bonds remain outstanding, proper books 

of record and account will be kept by the Issuer separate and apart from all other 

records and accounts, showing complete and correct entries of all transactions 

relating to the System.  The Bondholder or any duly authorized agent or agents of 

such holder shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect all records, 

accounts and data relating thereto and to inspect the System and all properties 

constituting the System.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the Issuer further 

agrees that it will within one hundred eighty (180) days following the close of each 

fiscal year (the term “fiscal year” as used in this subsection meaning whatever 

twelve-month period the Issuer may from time to time be using for general financial 

accounting purposes) cause an audit of such books and accounts to be made by an 

independent firm of certified public accountants, showing the receipts and 

disbursements for account of the System, and that such audit will be available for 

inspection by each Bondholder; provided, however, during such periods of time as 

the Water Quality Board is the registered owner of any of the Series 2021 Bonds, 

each such audit will be supplied to the Water Quality Board as soon as completed 

without prior request therefor by the Water Quality Board.  Each such audit, in 

addition to whatever matters may be thought proper by the accountant to be 

included therein, shall include the following: 

(i) A statement in detail of the income and expenditures of the 

System for such fiscal year; 

(ii) A balance sheet as of the end of such fiscal year; 

(iii) The accountant’s comments regarding the manner in which 

the Issuer has carried out the requirements of this Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture, and the accountant's recommendations for any change or 

improvement in the operation of the System; 

(iv) All schedules of rates and charges imposed for water service 

during the fiscal year. 

The audit must be performed in accordance with generally accepted government 

auditing standards. 

(b) In addition to the reporting requirements set forth in 3.1(a) above, 

the Issuer shall submit to the Water Quality Board within one hundred eighty (180) 

days following the close of the Issuer’s fiscal year, a summary report substantially 



   

 9 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

in the form as provided by the Water Quality Board to the Issuer upon purchase of 

the Series 2021 Bonds.  The Water Quality Board may, however, upon written 

request from the Issuer setting forth the reasons why a certified audit is not 

necessary or is impractical, waive the audit requirements for any particular fiscal 

year set forth in this Section 3.1(b). 

All expenses incurred in compiling the information required by this section shall 

be regarded and paid as an Operation and Maintenance Expense.  If the holder of the Series 

2021 Bonds is other than the Water Quality Board, the Issuer agrees to furnish a copy of 

such information to such Bondholder at its request after the close of each fiscal year.  Any 

Bondholder shall have the right to discuss with the accountant compiling such information 

the contents thereof and to ask for such additional information as it may reasonably require. 

(c) Every officer, agent or employee of the Issuer having custody or 

control of any of the Revenues or of the proceeds of the Series 2021 Bonds shall be 

bonded by a responsible corporate surety in an amount not less than twice the 

annual debt service on all Bonds issued under the Indenture, plus the annual debt 

service of the Series 2021 Bonds.  The premiums on such surety bonds shall not be 

an Operation and Maintenance Expense of the System. 

(d) The Issuer shall commence and complete the acquisition and 

construction of the 2021 Project with all practical dispatch and will cause all 

construction to be effected in a sound and economical manner. 

(e) Any bill not paid within thirty (30) days from the date it is mailed to 

the customer shall be deemed delinquent.  The Issuer hereby agrees that if any water 

bill remains delinquent for more than sixty (60) days, it will initiate proceedings to 

cause all water service to the water user concerned to be cut off immediately. 

(f) The Issuer will maintain its corporate identity, will make no attempt 

to cause its corporate existence to be abolished and will resist all attempts by other 

municipal corporations to annex all or any part of the territory now or hereafter in 

the Issuer or served by the System. 

(g) The Issuer will, upon request, provide a copy of the Trustee’s annual 

accounting required by Section 8.13 of the General Indenture to the Water Quality 

Board. 

(h) The Issuer agrees, in accepting the proceeds of the Series 2021 

Bonds, to comply with all applicable state and federal regulations related to the 

Utah State Revolving Fund administered by the Water Quality Board.  These 

requirements include, but are not limited to, Title XVI of the Safe Water Quality 

Act of 1996, OMB Circular A-133, the Utah Federal State Revolving Fund (SRF) 

Program (R309-705 of the Utah Administrative Code), the Local Government 

Bonding Act, the Utah Money Management Act, the Utah Procurement Code, and 

the State of Utah Legal Compliance Audit Guide. 



   

 10 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ARTICLE IV 

 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Section 4.1 Establishment of the Series 2021 Cost of Issuance Account.   There 

is hereby established by the Trustee a Series 2021 Cost of Issuance Account to be held and 

administered by the Trustee in accordance with the General Indenture and this Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture. 

Section 4.2 Transfer of Fund and Application of Proceeds of the Series 2021 

Bonds and Exchange.  The Series 2021 Bonds shall be delivered to the Water Quality Board 

in exchange for the surrender of the Issuer’s Series 2012 Bonds. The Trustee is hereby 

instructed to destroy such Series 2012 Bonds. 

Section 4.3 Series 2021 Costs of Issuance Account.  Disbursements of moneys 

in the Series 2021 Costs of Issuance Account shall be made in accordance with the terms 

of Section 3.1 of the General Indenture and Section 4.5 of the Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture.  The Costs of Issuance shall be paid by the Trustee from the Series 2021 Cost 

of Issuance Account upon receipt from the Issuer of an executed Cost of Issuance 

Disbursement Request in substantially the form of Exhibit A attached hereto. 

Section 4.4 Series 2021 Debt Service Reserve Account.  Funds within the 

reserve account of the Refunded Bonds in the amount of the Debt Service Reserve 

Requirement shall be transferred by the Trustee into the Series 2021 Debt Service Reserve 

Account.  The moneys on deposit in the Series 2021 Debt Service Reserve Account shall 

be used and when used, replenished, in accordance with the provisions of the General 

Indenture.   

Section 4.5 Capital Facilities Replacement Reserve Account.  For purposes of 

the Series 2021 Bonds, there is no Capital Facilities Replacement Reserve Account 

requirement. 

Section 4.6 Series 2021 Bonds as Additional Bonds.  The Series 2021 Bonds are 

issued as Additional Bonds under Section 2.13 of the General Indenture.  The Issuer hereby 

certifies that the requirements set forth in Section 2.13 of the General Indenture have been 

and will be complied within connection with the issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds.  



   

 11 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ARTICLE V 

 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 5.1 Confirmation of Sale of Series 2021 Bonds.  The sale of the Series 

2021 Bonds to the Water Quality Board at a price of $______ is hereby ratified, confirmed, 

and approved. 

Section 5.2 Severability.  If any provision of this Fifth Supplemental Indenture 

shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied 

in any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because it 

conflicts with any other provision or provisions hereof or any constitution or statute or rule 

of public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of 

rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in any other case or 

circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained invalid, 

inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent whatever.  The invalidity of any one or more 

phrases, sentences, clauses or sections in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture contained, shall 

not affect the remaining portions of this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, or any part thereof. 

Section 5.3 Counterparts.  This Fifth Supplemental Indenture may be 

simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all 

of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

Section 5.4 Applicable Law.  This Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall be 

governed exclusively by the applicable laws of the State of Utah. 

Section 5.5 Effective Date.  This Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall become 

effective immediately upon execution. 

 



   

 12 
4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ARTICLE VI 

 

CONFIRMATION OF GENERAL INDENTURE 

As supplemented by this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, and except as provided 

herein, the General Indenture is in all respects ratified and confirmed, and the General 

Indenture, and this Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall be read, taken and construed as one 

and the same instrument so that all of the rights, remedies, terms, conditions, covenants, 

and agreements of the General Indenture shall apply and remain in full force and effect 

with respect to this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, and to any revenues, receipts and moneys 

to be derived therefrom. 



 

   

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Trustee have caused this Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture of Trust to be executed as of the date first written above. 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, UTAH 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By:  

Chair 

 

 

COUNTERSIGN: 

 

 

 

By:  

Chief Financial Officer/Clerk 

 

 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, 

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 

 

 

 

By:  

 

Title:  

 



 

 C-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

COST OF ISSUANCE DISBURSEMENT REQUEST 

 

 

 

Zions Bancorporation, National Association 

One South Main Street, 12th Floor 

Salt Lake City UT 84133 

 

Pursuant to Section 4.2 of the Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of 

__________, 2021, you are hereby authorized to pay to the following costs of issuance 

from the Series 2021 Construction Fund: 

[See Attached Schedule] 

 

 

  

CHAIR, 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, UTAH 

 

 

 

STATE OF UTAH DEPARTMENT OF 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, WATER 

QUALITY BOARD 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

 

COSTS OF ISSUANCE 

Payee Purpose Amount 

   

   

   

   

   



 

 C-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT B-1 

 

FORM OF STATE BONDS—SERIES 2021 BOND 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF UTAH 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2021 

 

 
Number R - 1 $__________ 

Hardship Grant 

Assessment  Maturity Date Original Issue Date 

   

 

Registered Owner:    

Principal Amount:    

 
Granger-Hunter Improvement District, Utah (“Issuer”), a political subdivision and 

body politic duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of 

Utah, for value received, hereby acknowledges itself to be indebted and promises to pay to 

the Registered Owner named above or registered assigns, out of the special fund 

hereinbelow designated and not otherwise, the Principal Amount specified above in 

installments set forth herein with Hardship Grant Assessment thereon until paid at the 

Hardship Grant Assessment rate per annum specified above, payable annually on 

__________ of each year commencing __________, 2020, until said Principal Amount is 

paid in full.  Principal and premium, if any, shall be payable upon surrender of this Bond 

at the principal offices of Zions Bancorporation, National Association, One South Main 

Street, 12th Floor, Salt Lake City, Utah (“Trustee” and “Paying Agent”), or its successors 

provided, however, that as long as the State of Utah Department of Environmental Quality 

Water Quality Board (“Water Quality Board”) is the registered holder of this Bond, 

installment payments of principal and Hardship Grant Assessment shall be made without 

presentation of the Bond by check or draft mailed to the Water Quality Board as the 

Registered Owner at the address shown on the registration books maintained by the 

Registrar. The Hardship Grant Assessment on this Bond shall be payable by check or draft 

mailed to the Registered Owner hereof at his address as it appears on the registration books 

of the Paying Agent, who shall also act as the Registrar for the Issuer, or at such other 

address as is furnished to the Paying Agent in writing by such Registered Owner. The 

Hardship Grant Assessment hereon shall be deemed to be paid by the Paying Agent when 

mailed.  Both principal and Hardship Grant Assessment shall be payable in lawful money 

of the United States of America.  Principal shall be payable in registered installments on 

__________ of each of the years as set forth in the following repayment schedule: 



 

 B-1-2  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

 

 

Payment Date 

(__________) 

 

Principal Amount 
Payment Date 

(__________) 

 

Principal Amount 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 

If any installment payment of Bond principal and Hardship Grant Assessment is 

not paid when due and payable, the Issuer shall pay interest at the rate of eighteen percent 

(18%) per annum on the delinquent installment from said due date until paid.  All payments 

shall be made in any coin or currency which on the date of payment is legal tender for the 

payment of debts due the United States of America.   

This Bond is payable solely from a special fund designated the “Bond Fund” 

established under a General Indenture of Trust dated February 1, 2005 (the “General 

Indenture”) by and between the Issuer and Zions Bancorporation, National Association, as 

trustee (the “Trustee”).  To the extent necessary to assure prompt payment of this Bond, 

the Issuer shall pledge 100% of the Net Revenues (as defined in the Indenture herein 

described) in the Bond Fund derived and to be derived from the operation of the Issuer’s 

water and sewer system (the “System”), all as more fully described and provided in the 

General Indenture, as supplemented by a Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of 

__________, 2021 (the “Fifth Supplemental Indenture”), by and between the Issuer and 

the Trustee approved by the Board of Trustees of the Issuer on December 16, 2020 (the 

General Indenture as previously amended and as further amended in the Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture are collectively referred to herein as the “Indenture”). 

As more fully provided in the Indenture, the Series 2021 Bonds and certain other 

outstanding bonds as described under the Indenture (the “Outstanding Parity Bonds”) shall 

be payable only from the Net Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) and shall not constitute 

a general indebtedness or pledge of the full faith and credit of the Issuer, within the meaning 

of any constitutional or statutory provision or limitation of indebtedness. 

This Bond is issued pursuant to (1) the Indenture and (2) the Utah Refunding Bond 

Act, Title 11, Chapter 27, Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the “Act”) for the 

purpose of providing funds to (a) refund the Refunded Bonds as defined in the  Indenture 

and (b) pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds.  This 

Bond is a special limited obligation of the Issuer payable solely from the Net Revenues (as 

defined in the Indenture) of the System and does not constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer 



 

 B-1-3  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

within the meaning of any state constitutional or statutory limitation.  In no event shall this 

Bond be deemed or construed to be a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer or 

payable from any funds of the Issuer other than the Revenues of the System. 

As provided in the Indenture, bonds, notes and other obligations may be issued 

from time to time in one or more series in various principal amounts, may mature at 

different times, may bear interest at different rates and may otherwise vary as provided in 

the Indenture, and the aggregate principal amount of such bonds, notes and other 

obligations which may be issued is not limited.  This Bond and all other bonds, notes and 

other obligations issued and to be issued under the Indenture on a parity with this Bond are 

and will be equally and ratably secured by the pledge and covenants made therein, except 

as otherwise expressly provided or permitted in or pursuant to the Indenture. 

The issuance of this Bond shall not, directly, indirectly or contingently, obligate the 

Issuer or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof to levy any form of 

taxation therefor or to make any appropriation for its payment. 

This Bond is subject to prepayment and redemption at any time, in whole or in part 

(if in part, in integral multiples of $1,000), at the election of the Issuer in inverse order of 

the due date of the principal installments hereof and by lot selected by the Issuer if less 

than all Bonds of a particular due date are to be redeemed, upon notice given as hereinafter 

set forth, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount to be so prepaid. 

Notice of redemption shall be mailed by the Trustee, postage prepaid, not less than 

thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed for prepayment, to the registered owner of this Bond 

addressed to such owner at its address appearing on the registration books maintained by 

the Trustee. 

  Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Bonds are issuable in fully 

registered form, without coupons, in denomination equal to the principal amount of the 

bonds or, upon exchange, in the denomination of $1,000 and any integral multiple thereof.  

The Issuer covenants and agrees that it will fix rates for water service sufficient to 

pay when due this Bond and the principal and Hardship Grant Assessment on all bonds 

issued on a priority to or parity with this Bond, if any, as the same fall due, provided such 

rates must be reasonable rates for the type, kind and character of the service rendered, and 

will collect and account for the Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) to be received for 

such service, and will set aside one hundred percent (100%) of the Net Revenues of the 

System (as defined in the Indenture) to pay this Bond according to the payment terms 

hereinabove set forth and the principal and interest on all bonds issued on a parity with this 

Bond, if any. 

To the extent and in the respects permitted by the Indenture, the Indenture may be 

modified or amended by action on behalf of the Issuer taken in the manner and subject to 

the conditions and exceptions prescribed in the Indenture.  The holder or owner of this 

Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the Indenture or to institute action to 

enforce the pledge or covenants made therein or to take any action with respect to an event 



 

 B-1-4  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

of default under the Indenture or to institute, appear in, or defend any suit or other 

proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Indenture. 

This Bond shall be registered in the name of the initial purchaser and any 

subsequent purchasers in an appropriate book in the office of the Trustee, who shall be the 

Registrar.  This Bond is transferable only by notation upon said book by the registered 

owner hereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, by the surrender of 

this Bond, together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Issuer, duly 

executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing; thereupon, this 

Bond shall be delivered to and registered in the name of the transferee. 

It is hereby declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, happen 

and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond have existed, have happened 

and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, 

that the amount of this Bond does not exceed any limitation prescribed by the Constitution 

or statutes of the State of Utah, that the Net Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) to be 

derived from the operation of the System have been pledged and that an amount therefrom 

will be set aside into a special fund by the Issuer sufficient for the prompt payment of this 

Bond, and all bonds and notes issued on a parity with this Bond, if any, and that said Net 

Revenues are not pledged, hypothecated or anticipated in any way other than by the issue 

of this Bond and all bonds and notes issued on a parity with this Bond, if any. 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to 

any security or benefit under the Indenture until the Certificate of Authentication on this 

Bond shall have been manually signed by the Trustee.   



 

 B-1-5  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed by its Chair 

and countersigned by its Chief Financial Officer/Clerk with the seal of said Issuer affixed, 

all as of this __________, 2021. 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT, UTAH 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By: (Do Not Sign)  

Chair 

 

 

COUNTERSIGN: 

 

 

 

By:  (Do Not Sign)    

Chief Financial Officer/Clerk 



 

 B-1-6  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

This Bond is the Series 2021 Bond described in the within mentioned Indenture. 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL 

ASSOCIATION, as Trustee 

 

 

 

By:        

Authorized Officer 

Date of Authentication: 

 

 

       



 

 B-1-7  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE 

 

(No writing to be placed herein except by the Bond Registrar) 

 

Date of Registration Name of Registered Owner 

Signature of  

Bond Registrar 

_________________ 

State of Utah Department of 

Environmental Quality, Water 

Quality Board  _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

 

  



 

  

EXHIBIT B-2 

 

FORM OF EXCHANGE BOND—SERIES 2021 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

STATE OF UTAH 

GRANGER-HUNTER IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2021 

 

Hardship Grant 

Assessment  Maturity Date Issue Date 

% ____________ ___________, 20__ 

 

Registered Owner:   

 

Principal Amount:   DOLLARS 

 

Granger-Hunter Improvement District, Utah (the “Issuer”), a political subdivision 

and body politic of the State of Utah, acknowledges itself indebted and for value received 

hereby promises to pay, but solely in the manner and from the revenues and sources 

hereinafter provided, to the Registered Owner identified above, or registered assigns, on 

the Maturity Date specified above, upon presentation and surrender thereof, the Principal 

Amount identified above.  Hardship Grant Assessment on the Principal Amount shall be 

payable by check or draft mailed by Zions Bancorporation, National Association (the 

“Paying Agent”) to the Registered Owner hereof on each __________.  Principal, Hardship 

Grant Assessment, and redemption price of this Bond shall be payable upon presentation 

of this Bond to the Paying Agent, for payment at maturity. 

If any installment payment of Bond principal and Hardship Grant Assessment is 

not paid when due and payable, the Issuer shall pay interest at the rate of eighteen percent 

(18%) per annum on the delinquent installment from said due date until paid.  All payments 

shall be made in any coin or currency which on the date of payment is legal tender for the 

payment of debts due the United States of America 

This Bond is one of an authorized issue of bonds of like date, term and effect except 

as to maturity, in the aggregate principal amount of ________________________ Dollars 

($__________), issued in exchange for the conversion of the Issuer’s Taxable Water and 

Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 in the total principal sum of $__________ authorized 

by a General Indenture of Trust dated February 1, 2005, as amended and a Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture of Trust, dated as of __________, 2021 (collectively, the 

“Indenture”), as authorized by a resolution of the Issuer adopted on December 15, 2020.  

This Bond and the issue of Bonds of which it is a part is issued pursuant to (1) the Indenture 

and (2) the Utah Refunding Bond Act, Title 11, Chapter 27, Utah Code Annotated 1953, 

as amended (the “Act”) to (a) refund the Refunded Bonds as defined in the Indenture and 

(b) pay costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2021 Bonds.  This Bond 

is a special limited obligation of the Issuer payable solely from the Net Revenues (as 



 

 B-1-2  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

defined in the Indenture) of the System and does not constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer 

within the meaning of any state constitutional or statutory limitation.  In no event shall this 

Bond be deemed or construed to be a general obligation indebtedness of the Issuer or 

payable from any funds of the Issuer other than the Revenues of the System. 

As provided in the Indenture, bonds, notes and other obligations may be issued 

from time to time in one or more series in various principal amounts, may mature at 

different times, may bear interest at different rates and may otherwise vary as provided in 

the Indenture, and the aggregate principal amount of such bonds, notes and other 

obligations which may be issued is not limited.  This Bond and all other bonds, notes and 

other obligations issued and to be issued under the Indenture on a parity with this Bond are 

and will be equally and ratably secured by the pledge and covenants made therein, except 

as otherwise expressly provided or permitted in or pursuant to the Indenture. 

The issuance of this Bond shall not, directly, indirectly or contingently, obligate the 

Issuer or any agency, instrumentality or political subdivision thereof to levy any form of 

taxation therefor or to make any appropriation for its payment. 

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity at any time, in whole or in 

part (if in part, in integral multiples of $1,000), at the election of the Issuer in inverse order 

of maturity and by lot within each maturity if less than the full amount is redeemed, upon 

not less than thirty (30) days’ nor more than forty-five (45) days’ prior notice, at a 

redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of each Bond to be redeemed.  

Notice of redemption shall be mailed by the Issuer, postage prepaid, to the registered 

owners of said Bonds addressed to such owners at their address appearing on the 

registration books maintained by the Issuer.  

Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, the Series 2021 Bonds are issuable in 

fully registered form, without coupons, in denomination equal to the principal amount of 

the bonds or, upon exchange, in the denomination of $1,000 or any integral multiple 

thereof. 

The Issuer covenants and agrees that it will fix rates for water service sufficient to 

pay this Bond when due, and principal and Hardship Grant Assessment on all bonds and 

Bonds issued on a priority to or parity with this Bond, if any, as the same fall due, provided 

such rates must be reasonable rates for the type, kind and character of the service rendered, 

and will collect and account for the Revenues (as defined in the Indenture) to be received 

for such service, and will set aside one hundred percent (100%) of the Net Revenues of the 

System (as defined in the Indenture) to pay this Bond according to the payment terms 

hereinabove set forth and the principal and interest on all bonds and notes issued on a parity 

with this Bond, if any. 

To the extent and in the respects permitted by the Indenture, the Indenture may be 

modified or amended by action on behalf of the Issuer taken in the manner and subject to 

the conditions and exceptions prescribed in the Indenture.  The Registered Owner of this 

Bond shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the Indenture or to institute action to 

enforce the pledge or covenants made therein or to take any action with respect to an event 



 

 B-1-3  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

of default under the Indenture or to institute, appear in, or defend any suit or other 

proceeding with respect thereto, except as provided in the Indenture. 

This Bond is transferable by the registered holder hereof in person or by his attorney 

duly authorized in writing at the office of the Trustee (the “Registrar”) but only in the 

manner, subject to the limitations and upon payment of the charges provided in the 

Indenture and upon surrender and cancellation of this Bond.  Upon such transfer a new 

registered Bond or Bonds of the same series and the same maturity and of authorized 

denomination or denominations for the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to 

the transferee in exchange therefor. 

It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all conditions, acts and things 

essential to the validity of this Bond and the issue of which it forms a part do exist, have 

happened and have been done, and that every requirement of law affecting the issue hereof 

has been duly complied with; that this Bond and the issue of which it forms a part does not 

exceed any limitation prescribed by the Constitution and laws of the State of Utah; that one 

hundred percent (100%) of the Net Revenues to be derived from the operation of the 

System, including any future improvements, additions and extensions thereto, have been 

pledged and will be set aside into said special fund by the Issuer to be used for the payment 

of this Bond and the issue of which it forms a part, and all bonds and notes issued on a 

parity with this Bond, if any, and that said Net Revenues of the System are not pledged, 

hypothecated or anticipated in any way other than by the issue of Series 2021 Bonds of 

which this Bond is one and all bonds and notes issued on a parity with this Bond, if any. 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to 

any security or benefit under the Indenture until the Certificate of Authentication on this 

Bond shall have been manually signed by the Trustee.   



 

 B-1-4  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Bond to be signed by its Chair 

and countersigned by its Chief Financial Officer/Clerk with the seal of said Issuer affixed, 

all as of __________, 2021. 

 

(SEAL) 

 

By: /s/(manual or facsimile signature)  

Chair 

 

COUNTERSIGN: 

 

 

 

By: /s/(manual or facsimile signature)  

Chief Financial Officer/Clerk 



 

 B-1-5  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

 

This Bond is one of the Series 2021 Bonds described in the within mentioned 

Indenture. 

ZIONS BANCORPORATION, NATIONAL 

ASSOCIATION, as Trustee 

 

 

 

By:  

Authorized Officer 

 

Date of Authentication:  

 

__________________________________ 



 

 B-1-6  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE 

 

(No writing to be placed herein except by the Bond Registrar) 

 

This Bond shall be payable only to the order of the registered owner or his legal 

representative. 

Date of Registration Name of Registered Owner 

Signature of  

Bond Registrar 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

_________________ _________________ _________________ 

 

 



 

 B-1-7  

4827-5561-6212, v. 2 

ASSIGNMENT 

 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED,        , the 

undersigned sells, assigns, and transfers unto: 

________________________________________________________________________ 
(Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee) 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 
(Please Print or Typewrite Name and Address of Assignee) 

 

the within Bond and all rights thereunder, and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 

______________________________ attorney for registration thereof, with full power of 

substitution in the premises. 

 

 DATED:     

 

 

 

Signature:  

 

NOTICE:  The signature to this assignment 

must correspond with the name of the 

Registered Owner as it appears upon the face 

of the within Bond in every particular without 

alteration or enlargement or any change 

whatever. 

 

 

Signature Guaranteed: 

 

 

 

       

 

NOTICE:  The signature(s) should be 

guaranteed by an eligible guarantor 

institution (banks, stockbrokers, savings and 

loan associations, and credit unions with 

membership in an approved signature 

guarantee medallion program), pursuant to 

S.E.C. Rule 17Ad-15. 

 

 


